
Northumberland County Board of Supervisors 

Budget Hearing 

May 29, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. 

Minutes 
 

  
 This was a special meeting for the purpose of holding a public hearing on two issues. The first is an 
Amendment to the County Code to include a no trespass restriction for animals and the second public 
hearing will be to take comments on the Fiscal Year 2008/2009 budget and tax rate change.  The County 
Administrator, Kenneth D. Eades, and Assistant County Administrator Luttrell Tadlock was present along 
with County Attorney Leslie Kilduff. 
 
Supervisor Ronald L. Jett, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
A quorum was established with the following members present: 
 
Ronald L. Jett, Chairman 
Richard F. Haynie, Vice Chairman 
A. Joseph Self, Sr. 
Thomas H. Tomlin 
James M. Long 
 
 

RE: AMENDMENT TO THE COUNTY CODE TO INCLUDE A NO TRESPASS RESTRICTION 

FOR ANIMALS 

 

County Administrator Kenneth D. Eades described the request. He noted that just before the meeting he 
received a petition with approximately 20 signatures that were not in support of the amendment.  He 
explained that he had received several correspondences in reference to this public hearing, some that were 
in support and some in opposition.  The wording of the amendment was: 

 § 34-26. Statutory authority. Be it ordained by the Board of Supervisors of Northumberland County, 
Virginia, pursuant to and under the authority conferred by § 15.2-1218 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as 
amended, as follows. § 34-27. Forbidding Trespass. It shall be unlawful for the owner, possessor or 
custodian of any animal, after being requested by the owner or tenant of any premises not to allow the 
same to trespass upon such premises, to allow such animal to go upon such premises.  § 34-28. Violations 
and penalties. Violation of this article shall be punishable as a Class 4 misdemeanor for the first offense 
and any subsequent violation shall be punishable as a Class 1 misdemeanor.  

Public Hearing Open 

 
Mr. Ron Steger spoke in support of the amendment. He stated that he opposes laws that restrict certain 
individuals but feel that dogs have more rights than people.  We need to do something that condones the 
owner of dog that destroys property.  
 



Mr. Al Myers also in support said that he comes from a community where they have the leash law and it 
doesn’t work. 
 
Janice Neff stated she is in favor because dog owners need to be respectful of others and what they have.  
 
Mr. Andrew Bezek asked a question on how to determine who owns a dog.  
 
Mr. Myles Cockrell stated he is not in support of this amendment.  He said this is the Northern Neck and 
an amendment like this is taking away from what people are drawn to this area for.  Responsible owners 
are more than happy to fix what their dog has done wrong. 
  
Mr. Richard Thompson, in favor, stated he has had two instances of a dog digging in his river bank and his 
wife has been frightened to walk in a field by their house. He said this will benefit the whole county.  
 
Mr. William Coleman also in favor of the amendment commented on what Mr. Myles Cockrell said. He 
added   that having a dog infringes on others private property and takes away the freedom of the property 
owner.  
 
Mr. Don Rice spoke in support, stating this is a good solution to this problem. 
 
Mr. Mitchell Jett stated that this is a lot more serious penalty than people realize and it gets into the rights 
of individuals.  He said the first time you ask for the dog to stay away, the next time the dog is there and 
you have proof it is a class 4 misdemeanor.  After that it becomes a Class 1 Misdemeanor which may 
include jail time.  It’s a dog on one hand, and civil rights on the other.  
 
Mr. John Haskins stated this amendment doesn’t go far enough. The dogs are charging at people walking 
on the roadways.  He is in favor of the amendment.  
 
Ms. Fran Chiles stated that the law is too harsh. She said individuals should work it out.  
 
Ms. Connie Westnewtzie stated she use to walk and now can’t. She wants to feel safe on the street.  
 
Mr. Todd VanLandingham stated that it sounds like a lot of the problems people are having are within 
subdivisions. There is a need to get a leash law enforced within that subdivision and take care of the 
problem that way.  This would be a hardship on everyone.  
 
Supervisor Long said this is a county wide problem. 
 

Public Hearing Closed 

 
Supervisor Self asked if Les Kilduff and the Commonwealth Attorney have given their opinions on the 
penalties?  Something needs to be done but the penalties are strict and can be abused.  
 
Supervisor Long stated that we need to protect the public. 
 
Supervisor Tomlin stated that the person would have to be able to identify the dog just like a human 
trespassing. He suggested lowering the penalty.  



 
Chairman Jett said he spoke with the Sheriff about the burden of this ordinance and it could be a lot of 
work.  He also spoke with Prince William County’s Commonwealth Attorney and he stated that this is 
basically a county wide leash law, just a little more severe.  
 
Supervisor Tomlin said he had spoken with the Commonwealth Attorney here and that he is having a 
problem with dogs on Lodge Road as far as being able to jog on the road.  
 
Upon motion by Thomas H. Tomlin, duly seconded by James M. Long, to approve the amendment on the 
no trespass restriction for animals with reduction of the penalty to include the Class IV misdemeanor 
charge for all offenses. The vote on the motion was as follows: 
 
Ronald L. Jett - NAY  
James M. Long - YEA 
Thomas H. Tomlin - YEA  
Richard F. Haynie- NAY 
Joseph Self, Sr. – NAY 
 
The vote failed 2 to 3.  
 
Chairman Jett stated he could not support this amendment after researching this issue. He said this is not 
the answer. 
 
Supervisor Self stated he is not supporting this but something needs to be done for those that are walking 
on the roads.  
 

RE: DOGS ON HIGHWAY ORDINANCE 

 
Upon motion by Thomas H. Tomlin, duly seconded by Richard F. Haynie the board voted to take a look at 
Ordinance 15.1-512, dogs on Highways to see what can be done for public safety. The vote on the motion 
was as follows: 
 
Ronald L. Jett - YEA  
James M. Long - YEA 
Thomas H. Tomlin - YEA  
Richard F. Haynie- YEA 
Joseph Self, Sr. – YEA 
 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2008-2009 

                    

County Administrator Kenneth D. Eades advised the citizens in attendance that the Board cannot act on 
the budget until seven days after the public hearing.  He also explained that the figures in the budget were 
advertised as submitted by each department.  The tax rate for FY 09 was advertised at $0.40 and there 
were no increases to the other tax rates.  Mr. Eades presented the following: 
 
 
 



 
 
EST. BEGINNING UNDESIGNATED GENERAL FUND BALANCE: .........................…...       $  5,600,000 

 
REVENUE ESTIMATES: 

 
Local Sources.................................................................................................................................. 14,001,708   
Other Local Sources........................................................................................................................ 19,659,674 
State & Federal Sources..................................................................................................................   9,938,773 
Subtotal Revenues...........................................................................................................................  43,600,155 
 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES ........................................................................................... $49,200,155 
 

EXPENDITURE ESTIMATES: 
 

General Government Administration..............................................................................................      1,367,453 
Judicial Administration ...................................................................................................................         736,982 
Public Safety ...................................................................................................................................      3,312,620 
Public Works...................................................................................................................................      1,227,069 
Health and Welfare .........................................................................................................................      3,036,906 
Education  ……………… ..................................................................................................………    16,649,277 
Parks, Recreation and Culture.........................................................................................................         160,000 
Community Development ...............................................................................................................         469,867 
Non-departmental ...........................................................................................................................     19,583,695 
Subtotal Estimated Expenditures ...................................................................................................     46,543,869 
Undesignated General Fund Balance..............................................................................................    $ 2,656,286 

 
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES & FUND BALANCE.............................................   $49,200,155 

 

TAX RATES 

 

 The Board of Supervisors proposes that the local tax levies for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 
be as follows: 
 
 Real Estate .................................$0.40 cents per $100 of assessed valuation. 
 Personal Property .......................$3.60 at a 40% assessment ratio of NADA 
 Machinery & Tools ....................$3.60 at a 25% assessment ratio of original cost, 1st year. 
 Machinery & Tools ....................$3.60 at a 10% assessment ratio of original cost, 2nd year. 
 Merchants Capital ......................$1.00 at a 50% assessment ratio of original cost. 

 
 
Mr. Eades commented that the Board is attempting to make up 1.2 million that has been cut from state 
money. 
 
Chairman Jett opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Pat Rogers from the Master Gardeners explained what the gardeners do for the County and the things 
they grow. She talked about the volunteers that work hard.  
 



Mr. Walter Brodtman stated he supports the budget request for the Extension Agency.  He said it is a  
county investment to keep them in the budget. He said that if there is a shortfall it will be a 13 times 
greater loss from the loss of volunteers.  If this happens there will be a collapse in the programs and 
services.  
 
Helen Tucker stated she supports the 4-H club and has invested 10 years in the program herself and is very 
impressed with Northumberland County’s 4-H program.  
 
Ms. Jan Bates, Elementary School teacher stated that she hasn’t heard of objections to the 4 cent increase. 
Passing the budget takes a lot of courage. People understand that an increase is needed and said that an 
increase is needed and we need to do whatever increase is necessary not to cut out programs. 
 
Mr. Allen Welch came to support the Extension Agency for the services it provides. He said it is the 
backbone of rural life. They help homeowners, farmers, etc., and he said Matt (Lewis) and staff are spread 
thin, please do not cut the extension budget.  
 
Superintendent Clint Stables spoke on the school budget. He expressed his support for the extension 
agency as well as the master gardeners. He said as far as the school division, fuel costs have increased 
$225,000 and the drop in the state and federal funding is $940,000.  If this money is not made up, it means 
20 teaching positions.  
 
Ms. Sue Fernett who lives in Westmoreland County stated that the master gardeners are all made up of 
volunteers and have given a great deal to the Northern Neck. 
 
Ms. Jenny Estell asked if the 4 cent increase would provide the amount needed to fund the budget without 
any cuts to balance the budget. Chairman Jett stated cuts would still need to be made to balance the 
budget.  She then stated that we need to find an amount to keep all requests fully funded.  She said there is 
no waste, fraud or abuse in any areas. 
 
Mr. Bill Kirby questioned the budget process and suggests changes be made to the budget format so that 
actual numbers show through.  He said he would like to see better information given. Chairman Jett stated 
that this is the process but our auditors have never requested a change.  Supervisor Tomlin stated that the 
Auditors don’t have a specific form. 
 
Ms. Sheila Chestnut asked not to let any of the teachers go. 
 
Ms. Wanda Allain said she supports what Jenny Estell said earlier. She said she is with the Library and 
they function on a very small budget.  She said no services need to be taken out and to raise the rate to 
what is needed to keep all services. 
 
Supervisor Tomlin said that the Board advertised the tax rate to increase 4 cents and can not go above 4 
cents unless it is re-advertised. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 

 
Upon motion by James M. Long, the Board voted to hold another hearing to raise the rate to $.42, a six 
cent increase instead of the advertised four cents. No one seconded this motion.  



 
Supervisor Self stated to the audience that they needed to realize that a 4 cent increase is approximately a 
10 percent increase and a 6 cents increase is about 18 percent. 
 
Chairman Jett called for the vote on the motion. 
 
The vote on the motion is as follows: 
 
Ronald L. Jett - NAY  
James M. Long - YEA 
Thomas H. Tomlin - YEA  
Richard F. Haynie- NAY 
Joseph Self, Sr. – NAY 
 
The motion failed 3-2. 
 

RE:  ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business the meeting was carried over to 5 p.m. on June 3, 2008 at the board room 
for budget work-session. Upon motion by A. Joseph Self, Sr. duly seconded by James M. Long.  
 
 
             
 ___________________________________________ 
             Kenneth D. Eades Clerk for the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


